# SPELLCASTING FOR THE MODERN WITCH

**XYPHERA** 

1 6 1 1/6-17

# **SPELLCASTING** For the modern witch

50 Unique Rituals for Love, Lust, Protection, Prosperity, and Beyond

# **Table of Contents**

- 1. Introduction: Reclaiming Your Power
- 2. Disclaimer & Ethical Considerations
- 3. Fundamentals: Energy, Intention, and Tools
  - 3.1 The Importance of Lunar Cycles
  - 3.2 Collecting Materials: Crystals, Herbs, Candles, and More
  - 3.3 Creating Sacred Space
  - 3.4 Forming Your Sigil

### 4. Category One: Everyday Essentials (Spells 1–5)

- Spell 1: Morning Clarity Candle
- Spell 2: Quick Home Blessing
- Spell 3: Stress-Relief Bath Infusion
- Spell 4: Daily Protection Bubble
- Spell 5: Attract Small Fortunes Jar

### 5. Category Two: Prosperity & Success (Spells 6–10)

- Spell 6: Coin Magnet Ritual
- Spell 7: Career Elevation Sigil
- Spell 8: Abundance Doorstep Sprinkle
- Spell 9: Debt Alleviation Lantern
- Spell 10: Waxing Moon Wealth Matrix

### 6. Category Three: Protection & Banishing (Spells 11–15)

- Spell 11: Banishing Bad Habits with Black Salt
- Spell 12: Toxic Person Mirror Bind
- Spell 13: Cord-Cutting Incantation
- Spell 14: House Ward with Obsidian Sentries
- Spell 15: Negativity Absorption Bowl

### 7. Category Four: Attraction & Romance (Spells 16–20)

- Spell 16: Warm Hearts Rose Petal Charm
- Spell 17: New Love Beacon
- Spell 18: Harmonious Pairing Anointment
- Spell 19: Compassion Ribbon Weave
- Spell 20: Self-Love Bloom

### 8. Category Five: Mild to Moderate Love Influence (Spells 21-25)

- Spell 21: Subtle Admiration Whisper
- Spell 22: Memory-Forgiveness Candle
- Spell 23: Reconnecting Flames Jar
- Spell 24: Healing Past Wounds Box
- Spell 25: Renewed Spark in Marriage
- 9. Category Six: Lust & Passion (Spells 26–30)
  - Spell 26: Flicker of Desire
  - Spell 27: Carnelian Flame Seduction
  - Spell 28: Sensual Aura Infusion

- Spell 29: Moonlit Pleasure Mirror
- Spell 30: Union of Embers

### 10.Category Seven: Obsession & Extreme Desire (Spells 31–35)

- Spell 31: Mind-Wrap Candle Convergence
- Spell 32: Late Night Possession Oil
- Spell 33: Burning Thoughts Binding
- Spell 34: Scarlet Ribbon Fixation
- Spell 35: Obsessive Heart Lockbox

### 11. Category Eight: Darker Arts & Demonic Workings (Spells 36–40)

- Spell 36: Shadow Influence Cloak
- Spell 37: Nightmare Impression Jar
- Spell 38: Infernal Pact Candle
- Spell 39: Abyssal Power Channel
- Spell 40: Soul Link Binding

### 12.Category Nine: Summoning Incubi/Succubi (Spells 41–45)

- Spell 41: Succubus Temptation Summon
- Spell 42: Incubus Night Embrace
- Spell 43: Twilight Dream Exchange
- Spell 44: Pact of Secret Desires
- Spell 45: Demonic Consort Bond

### 13. Category Ten: Advanced Mastery & Ultimate Fulfillment (Spells 46–50)

- Spell 46: Eternal Union Seal
- Spell 47: Ultra-Demonic Sex Spell
- Spell 48: Summon Succubus Extracting the Raw Sexual Energy
- Spell 49: Extreme Obsession Circles
- Spell 50: Ascendant Manifestation

### 14. Maintaining Balance: When to Pause or Reverse a Spell

### 15. Working with the 30-Day Lunar Cycle

- 16. When to Seek Professional Help
- 17.Conclusion: Your Ongoing Path

# **1. Introduction: Reclaiming Your Power**

Magic, once hidden in secret circles or ridiculed by skeptics, has reemerged as a powerful tool for personal empowerment and spiritual growth. In this guide, you'll find 50 spells that range from simple daily charms to advanced rituals invoking demonic energies and rare crystals. Some require only a basic candle and a pinch of herbs; others demand expensive stones and precise lunar alignment.

You have two paths here:

- **Do-It-Yourself**: Follow the instructions, gather materials, and cast spells solo.
- **Professional Assistance**: For complex or ethically charged rituals—like obsession or demonic summoning—know that help is available. You can reach me at **xypherawitch@yahoo.com**. I can handle the entire process for you, or even assemble a **coven** to magnify the spell's intensity and ensure maximum success.

# 2. Disclaimer & Ethical Considerations

- 1. **Personal Responsibility**: Every spell can carry consequences, especially those that manipulate another's free will or harness darker forces. You assume full responsibility for the outcomes.
- 2. Professional Advice: This text doesn't replace medical, legal, or psychological services.
- 3. **Moral Boundaries**: Take heed before casting obsession or demonic spells. Consider karma, personal ethics, and the emotional well-being of all involved.
- 4. Legal Age: Practice responsibly, and be of legal age where you reside.
- 5. **Results:** Can vary based on personal energy, environment, mindset, and cosmic factors.

# 3. Fundamentals: Energy, Intention, and Tools

## 3.1 The Importance of Lunar Cycles

A lunar cycle takes ~29.5 days. Tying your intentions to the moon's phases can speed up or strengthen results. Spells that mention a **30-day** wait often rely on the full cycle for deep embedding into either the target's or your own energy field.

## 3.2 Collecting Materials: Crystals, Herbs, Candles, and More

- **Crystals**: Inexpensive Quartz or Amethyst (\$2–\$5) to ultra-rare Paraíba Tourmaline or Alexandrite (thousands of dollars).
- Candles: Color-coded for specific intentions.
- Herbs & Oils: Rosemary, lavender, patchouli, etc. can turbocharge a spell's focus.
- **Personal Items**: Photos, hair, or personal objects of the target (or yourself) link spells to realworld results.

### If you need help sourcing pricey crystals or specialized materials, email me at:

#### xypherawitch@yahoo.com.

I can arrange them and perform the entire ritual in a custom setup if desired.

### **3.3 Creating Sacred Space**

Cleanse your space—burn sage or incense, sprinkle salt in corners. Visualize a glowing circle of light that repels unwanted entities. This step is crucial, especially for advanced or dark spells.

### **3.4 Forming Your Sigil**

Sigils compress your intention into a symbolic form. Write your goal, remove duplicate letters, and craft an abstract design. Charge it with candlelight, sexual energy, or a reflection from a crystal.

# 4. Category One: Everyday Essentials

# (Spells 1–5)

Perfect for beginners or casual use. Materials are low-cost, typically under \$5 for crystals. These spells address daily clarity, home blessings, stress relief, basic protection, and attracting small financial luck.

**Amplify on Request**: For a deeper effect or multi-layered energy, I can cast these simple spells on your behalf or gather a **small coven** to enhance them.

Contact **<u>xypherawitch@yahoo.com</u>** if you want an advanced version of these everyday workings.

### Spell 1: Morning Clarity Candle

**Purpose**: Start the day focused and optimistic.

- 1. Materials:
  - A small white candle (tealight or votive)
  - A piece of Clear Quartz (\$2–\$5)
  - A pinch of rosemary
  - A slip of paper

#### 2. Preparation:

- On waking, cleanse your workspace with incense (optional).
- Write "Clarity" (or a specific intention) on the slip of paper.
- 3. Steps:
  - Place the Quartz exactly **3 centimeters** from the unlit candle.
  - Sprinkle rosemary in a small circle around the candle.
  - Light the candle. Let the first burst of flame pass through the Quartz to reflect on the paper.
  - Trace or focus on the glow, envisioning mental clarity.
  - Burn for at least 15 minutes while you prepare for your day.
- 4. **Timing**: Any morning, any moon phase.
- 5. Variations:
  - Swap rosemary for peppermint.
  - Charge a cup of coffee with the candle's energy.

### **Spell 2: Quick Home Blessing**

**Purpose**: Maintain a harmonious, positive home environment.

#### 1. Materials:

- 1 small bowl of salt
- 1 white candle
- A chunk of Selenite (about \$5–\$10)

### 2. **Preparation**:

- Lightly sprinkle salt in corners and doorways to absorb negativity.
- Place the candle in the living room or kitchen (central area).

### 3. Steps:

- Light the candle, hold the Selenite near the flame (about 3 cm away).
- Visualize white energy filling every room.
- Say: "Bless this home, keep it pure. Only warmth and kindness endure."
- Extinguish the candle after 5–10 minutes.
- 4. **Timing**: Waxing moon to attract positivity.

### 5. Variations:

- Add lavender buds to the salt for a soothing aura.
- If severe negativity persists, place Black Tourmaline in windows or corners.

### Spell 3: Stress-Relief Bath Infusion

**Purpose**: Dissolve daily tension and emotional buildup.

- A candle (white or light blue)
- Amethyst (\$3–\$8)
- Calming herbs (chamomile, lavender, or rose petals)
- 2. **Preparation**:
  - Run a warm bath. Scatter herbs on the water's surface.
  - Place the Amethyst at the tub's edge.
- 3. Steps:
  - Light the candle, set it safely away from water splashes.
  - Hold the Amethyst so candlelight passes through it into the bath.
  - Inhale slowly, imagining stress melting away into the water.
  - Soak 15+ minutes, focusing on calm breathing.
- 4. **Timing**: Waning moon to release negativity.
- 5. Variations:
  - Foot bath alternative if no tub.
  - Add 2–3 drops of lavender oil for extra relaxation.

### **Spell 4: Daily Protection Bubble**

**Purpose**: Shield against negativity, gossip, or psychic intrusion.

- 1. Materials:
  - 1 black candle
  - A piece of Black Obsidian or Black Tourmaline
  - A small mirror
- 2. Preparation:
  - Position the mirror so you see your reflection in a well-lit area.
  - Place the candle on a table with the crystal next to it.
- 3. Steps:
  - Light the candle, saying: "I form a shield, safe and sound. Negativity will not abound."
  - Put the crystal 3 cm from the flame, watch if the reflection hits the mirror.
  - Visualize a shimmering bubble around you.
  - Hold this image for a minute, intensifying the bubble's glow.
  - Extinguish the candle or let it burn if desired.
- 4. **Timing**: Any time, though morning is ideal for daily protection.
- 5. Variations:
  - Swap black candle for white if you want purely positive vibes.
  - Carry the crystal on you for extra protection.

### Spell 5: Attract Small Fortunes Jar

**Purpose**: Draw timely little boosts of income (tips, gifts, small wins).

- 1. Materials:
  - Tiny glass jar
  - Green candle
  - Loose change (coins)
  - Basil or mint leaves
  - Citrine (\$5–\$20)
- 2. Preparation:
  - Cleanse the jar with saltwater, let dry.
- 3. Steps:
  - Put some coins in the jar, add a pinch of basil or mint.
  - Lay the Citrine on top, seal the jar.
  - Light the green candle, letting its glow reflect onto the jar.
  - Say: "Small fortunes, draw near. Doors to luck, appear."
  - Let the candle burn 15 minutes, blow it out gently.

4. **Timing**: Waxing or full moon.

#### 5. Variations:

- Add a drop of cinnamon oil for faster attraction.
- Shake the jar each morning to reactivate its energy.

# 5. Category Two: Prosperity & Success

# (Spells 6–10)

Ideal for creating steady or amplified financial and career progress. Crystals like **Citrine**, **Pyrite**, or **Green Aventurine** cost \$5–\$30, making these spells more mid-range in investment.

**Hint:** For a **fast-track** financial breakthrough, I can perform these spells with rare crystals or coordinate a **coven** casting session. Contact **<u>xypherawitch@yahoo.com</u>** for more details.

### **Spell 6: Coin Magnet Ritual**

Purpose: Increase daily cash flow (tips, sales, or freelance income).

### 1. Materials:

- 3 shiny coins (local currency)
- 1 green candle
- Pyrite stone (\$5–\$20)
- A small pouch

#### 2. Instructions:

- Cleanse coins with salt or incense smoke.
- Carve initials or a money symbol on the candle.
- Place Pyrite close to the unlit candle. Light the wick.
- Pass each coin through the candlelight, stating: "Abundance grows, from me to thee. Let wealth flow, so mote it be."
- Put coins + Pyrite in the pouch, carry it or keep it near your workspace.
- 3. Timing:
  - Let the candle burn for ~20 minutes. Revisit monthly if desired.
- 4. Variations:
  - Swap Pyrite with Green Aventurine for gentler luck.
  - Add basil for a quick money boost.

### **Spell 7: Career Elevation Sigil**

Purpose: Gain promotions, recognition, or leadership roles.

- Tigers Eye (\$8–\$30)
- Yellow or gold candle
- Paper and pen

- Patchouli oil
- 2. Instructions:
  - Write your career goal on paper. Remove duplicate letters to form a sigil.
  - Draw or refine this sigil until it resonates.
  - Place Tigers Eye near the unlit candle (~3 cm). Light the candle.
  - Hold the paper so the candle's glow moves through Tigers Eye onto your sigil.
  - Dab patchouli oil on the paper's edges, saying: "In my work, I rise and soar. Let success come to my door."
- 3. Timing:
  - After a new moon, letting energy build.
- 4. Variations:
  - For creative jobs, use an orange candle.
  - If a big interview looms, do this 1–2 nights before.

### Spell 8: Abundance Doorstep Sprinkle

**Purpose**: Draw money and opportunities into your home or business.

- 1. Materials:
  - Sea salt
  - Dried mint + basil, crushed
  - Green Aventurine
  - Optional funnel or spoon
- 2. Instructions:
  - Mix salt, mint, and basil in a bowl.
  - Place Aventurine in the mix to charge it.
  - At your front door, sprinkle the blend on the threshold: "By leaf and stone, let fortune be sown. Prosperity, come into this home."
  - Let the herbs remain at the entrance or sweep lightly aside later.
- 3. Moon Phase:
  - Waxing or full moon.
- 4. Maintenance:
  - Refresh monthly. Clear old herbs, reapply new.

### Spell 9: Debt Alleviation Lantern

**Purpose**: Lighten financial burdens, reduce debt, and open repayment channels.

- A lantern or large jar
- White candle
- 3 to 7 bay leaves
- Clear Quartz

### 2. Instructions:

- Write each debt or worry on the bay leaves.
- Place them in the lantern/jar, with Clear Quartz at the bottom.
- Light the candle inside or on top. Focus on seeing debts dissolve.
- Say: "Let these burdens lighten, replaced by steady gain."
- Burn until at least one leaf curls from heat. Optional: burn leaves entirely outside for final release.

### 3. Timing:

• Waning moon for reducing debt.

# Spell 10: Waxing Moon Wealth Matrix

**Purpose**: 7-day ritual harnessing the waxing moon for financial growth.

- 1. Materials:
  - 7 green candles
  - 7 coins of various denominations
  - Moldavite or a pricier crystal (\$50–\$300, optional)
  - A cloth or altar space

### 2. Instructions:

- Nightly, place 1 green candle + 1 coin on your altar.
- If using Moldavite, position it so the candlelight filters through it each time.
- Carve date/money symbols on each candle.
- Light and recite: "Day by day, wealth grows in kind. By the moon's grace, riches I find."
- Let it burn ~15 minutes, save wax remains if desired.

### 3. Completion:

• On the 7th day, bury the coins near your door or keep them in a jar.

### 4. Contact for Covens:

• If you want a **coven** to amplify this matrix, email me at **<u>xypherawitch@yahoo.com</u>**.

# 6. Category Three: Protection & Banishing

# (Spells 11–15)

Ward off malevolent energies, banish toxic influences, and protect your personal space. Materials range from black salt and common herbs to Black Tourmaline or Obsidian.

**Advanced Ward**: If you suspect severe psychic attacks or malicious spirits, a **coven** can unify protective energies for fortress-level defense. Contact <u>xypherawitch@yahoo.com</u>.

### Spell 11: Banishing Bad Habits with Black Salt

Purpose: Remove self-sabotaging behaviors (smoking, procrastination, etc.).

- 1. Materials:
  - Black salt (mix sea salt + crushed black charcoal)
  - Black candle
  - Paper + pen
- 2. Instructions:
  - Write your unwanted habit on paper.
  - Form a small circle of black salt around the candle.
  - Place the paper inside the circle. Light the candle.
  - Envision the candle's flame absorbing the habit's energy.
  - Burn the paper in a fireproof bowl, discard ashes outside.
- 3. Moon Phase:
  - Waning moon to diminish bad habits.

### Spell 12: Toxic Person Mirror Bind

**Purpose**: Reflect negative energy back to a manipulator, stopping their harm.

- 1. Materials:
  - Small mirror
  - Black thread or ribbon
  - Target's photo (or name on paper)
  - Black Tourmaline
- 2. Instructions:
  - Place photo on the mirror (facing the reflective side).
  - Wrap them together with black thread 3 times.
  - Position the Black Tournaline 3 cm from the bundle.

- Speak: "Your harm returns unto you; my energy is safe, your darkness subdued."
- Keep the wrapped mirror in a dark drawer for 30 days.

### 3. Ethical Note:

• This is a defensive bind, not an attack.

### **Spell 13: Cord-Cutting Incantation**

Purpose: Sever energetic ties to ex-partners, toxic relationships, or draining family.

### 1. Materials:

- 2 candles (white or black)
- String or yarn (black or white)
- Scissors
- Black Obsidian

### 2. Instructions:

- Tie the string around both candles, 3 cm apart.
- Light the candles, place Obsidian near the string.
- Say: "I release you from my spirit. I free my heart to heal."
- Cut the string in the middle. Extinguish candles.

#### 3. Aftercare:

• Bury or discard the string outside. Keep Obsidian for ongoing emotional support.

### **Spell 14: House Ward with Obsidian Sentries**

Purpose: Fortify your home with protective corners.

- 1. Materials:
  - 4 Obsidian stones (\$3–\$10 each)
  - Black candle
  - Bowl of salt water

#### 2. Instructions:

- Rinse each Obsidian in salt water.
- Light the black candle, pass each stone briefly through its glow.
- Place 1 stone in each corner of your home.
- Recite: "Dark sentries, stand guard. None shall harm, none shall barge."
- Let the candle burn a few minutes, sealing the ward.
- 3. Maintenance:
  - Refresh monthly or upon sensing negativity.

### **Spell 15: Negativity Absorption Bowl**

**Purpose**: Absorb tension, arguments, and hostile vibes in a room.

- 1. Materials:
  - Ceramic/glass bowl
  - Sea salt (half fill)
  - Vinegar (enough to cover salt)
  - Smoky Quartz

#### 2. Instructions:

- Fill bowl with salt, pour vinegar until just above salt line.
- Place Smoky Quartz on top.
- Set the bowl in a conflict-prone area.
- Whisper: "All discord dissolve, all strife subside."
- Replace mixture weekly, discard old solution outside.

# 7. Category Four: Attraction & Romance

# (Spells 16–20)

Gentle spells using pink or red candles, plus Rose Quartz, Rhodonite, or simple romantic herbs. Ideal for boosting mutual affection or self-love.

**Boosting Attraction**: If you want multi-target magnetism or a stronger romance effect, a **coven** could combine energies for extraordinary results. Email **<u>xypherawitch@yahoo.com</u>**.

### Spell 16: Warm Hearts Rose Petal Charm

**Purpose**: Foster harmony and gentle affection between two people, or attract new romance if single.

#### 1. Materials:

- Pink candle
- Dried rose petals
- Rose Quartz
- A small pouch
- 2. Steps:
  - Light the pink candle.
  - Arrange rose petals around the flame.
  - Rub the Rose Quartz gently over the petals, visualizing warm love.
  - Place petals + crystal into a pouch, seal it.
  - Recite: "Petals so soft, draw love to me. May warm hearts flourish, so mote it be."
- 3. Timing: Friday (Venus day), waxing or full moon.

### Spell 17: New Love Beacon

**Purpose**: Attract a new partner with traits that align with your desires.

- 1. Materials:
  - Red or pink candle
  - Paper, pen
  - Rhodonite crystal
- 2. Steps:
  - List traits you want in a partner.
  - Fold paper, place under the candle.
  - Position Rhodonite 3 cm from the wick.
  - Light candle: "I shine my light, a beacon of love. Draw near, the one who matches me."
  - Burn ~20 minutes, keep the paper safe until you meet someone special.

#### 3. Repetition:

• Do for up to 3 nights if needed.

### **Spell 18: Harmonious Pairing Anointment**

**Purpose**: Improve unity and empathy in an existing relationship.

#### 1. Materials:

- Two pink candles
- Honey + rose oil
- Rose Quartz
- 2. Steps:
  - Anoint candles with honey, then rose oil.
  - Place them close together, with Rose Quartz in between.
  - Light them, stating: "Together we stand, in sweet harmony. Love grows stronger, so mote it be."
  - After 20–30 minutes, extinguish flames gently.
- 3. Note:
  - Doing this with your partner doubles its potency.

### Spell 19: Compassion Ribbon Weave

**Purpose**: Weave empathy and understanding into a relationship.

- 1. Materials:
  - 2 ribbons (one pink, one white)
  - A small charm (heart or knot)
  - Lavender buds
- 2. Steps:
  - Lay ribbons parallel, place the charm + lavender in the center.
  - Begin twisting or braiding ribbons, threading the charm in.
  - Visualize open communication and compassion.
  - Tie off ends, store the cord under your pillow or near the bed.
- 3. Optional:
  - Light a white candle for a serene ambiance while weaving.

### Spell 20: Self-Love Bloom

**Purpose**: Strengthen self-worth and confidence.

- White or pink candle
- Mirror
- A fresh or silk rose
- Rose Quartz
- 2. Steps:
  - Set the candle in front of the mirror, rose on one side, Rose Quartz on the other.
  - Light the candle so it reflects your image.
  - Gaze at yourself, holding the rose near your heart, repeating positive affirmations.
  - Pass Rose Quartz in front of the flame, then near your face as if bathing in love energy.
- 3. **Timing**: Anytime you need a confidence boost.

# 8. Category Five: Mild to Moderate Love Influence

# (Spells 21-25)

Nudge another's emotions gently. Always weigh free will concerns before proceeding.

**Personalized Influence**: If you need a stronger or more tailored approach, I can do a specialized or **coven-based** love spell. Contact **<u>xypherawitch@yahoo.com</u>**.

### Spell 21: Subtle Admiration Whisper

Purpose: Spark a faint romantic interest or improve someone's perception of you.

- 1. Materials:
  - Light pink candle
  - Paper with target's name
  - Rose Quartz or Rhodochrosite
- 2. Steps:
  - Write the person's name, fold the paper 3 times.
  - Place under the candle, crystal 3 cm from flame.
  - Light candle, whisper: "I do not command, nor force your mind. Simply warm your thoughts, that in me you find reason to be near."
  - Burn for 15 minutes, store folded paper safely for 30 days.

### Spell 22: Memory-Forgiveness Candle

**Purpose**: Ease grudges, reconcile after misunderstandings.

- 1. Materials:
  - White candle
  - Photo or name paper
  - Sage or mint leaves
  - Amethyst
- 2. Steps:
  - Briefly burn sage or mint leaves to cleanse negativity.
  - Write "Peace between us. Release the past."
  - Set the note and Amethyst near candle. Light it.
  - Recite: "Let memory be gentle, let forgiveness flow. May serenity return and compassion grow."
  - Let candle burn 10–15 minutes.

### Spell 23: Reconnecting Flames Jar

**Purpose**: Encourage contact or reconciliation with someone who has drifted away.

- 1. Materials:
  - Small jar
  - Pink/red candle
  - Cinnamon stick
  - Photo or name slip
  - Red thread
- 2. Steps:
  - Wrap the cinnamon stick with the photo (or name slip) using red thread.
  - Place it inside the jar.
  - Light the candle, drip wax into the jar to seal warmth.
  - Say: "Flames of memory, breathe anew. Rekindle closeness between us two."
  - Close the jar, keep it near a windowsill at night.

### Spell 24: Healing Past Wounds Box

**Purpose**: Release old heartbreak or unresolved tension, opening space for possible reconciliation or inner peace.

### 1. Materials:

- Small wooden box
- Band-aids/plasters (symbolic)
- Dried lavender/rose petals
- Clear Quartz
- 2. Steps:
  - Write down your emotional hurt on a slip of paper.
  - Place it in the box, layer with petals and a band-aid to symbolize healing.
  - Put Clear Quartz on top, close the box.
  - Whisper: "Scars may fade, hearts can mend. Let healing rise, love transcend."
  - Store until you feel relief.

# Spell 25: Renewed Spark in Marriage

**Purpose**: Revitalize emotional warmth in a marriage.

- 2 pink or white candles
- A strand of each partner's hair (optional but potent)

- Rose Quartz or Rhodonite
- 2. Steps:
  - Lay the two candles apart, place the crystal in the center.
  - Wrap each hair strand around the crystal if possible.
  - Light both candles simultaneously: "Hearts entwined, let spark renew. In trust, in love, we rise anew."
  - After 20–30 minutes, extinguish flames. Keep the crystal in your bedroom.

# 9. Category Six: Lust & Passion

# (Spells 26-30)

Aim for heightened sexual desire, typically using **Carnelian** or **Garnet**. Great for couples or personal allure.

**Hotter Flames**: If you desire something beyond normal passion—like truly explosive chemistry—consider a multi-witch casting. Contact <u>xypherawitch@yahoo.com</u> for coven synergy.

### **Spell 26: Flicker of Desire**

Purpose: Mildly boost sexual tension or curiosity.

#### 1. Materials:

- Red candle
- Carnelian stone
- Rose/jasmine petals
- 2. Steps:
  - Circle the candle with petals.
  - Place Carnelian 3 cm from flame.
  - Light candle: "Desire's spark, come forth this night. Stir the senses, bring delight."
  - Burn 15–20 minutes, let the energy flow.

### **Spell 27: Carnelian Flame Seduction**

**Purpose**: A stronger seduction boost for existing partners or new flings.

- 2 red candles
- Larger Carnelian (\$30–\$50)
- Cinnamon oil
- 2. Steps:
  - Carve your initials on one candle, target's on the other.
  - Anoint both with cinnamon oil.
  - Place Carnelian between them, light.
  - Recite: "Fire in mind, body, soul. Carnelian blaze, make passion whole."
  - After 30 minutes, snuff out flames.

### Spell 28: Sensual Aura Infusion

Purpose: Elevate your personal sexual confidence.

- 1. Materials:
  - Red or pink candle
  - Mirror
  - Jasmine/ylang-ylang oil
  - Garnet stone
- 2. Steps:
  - Draw a bath or shower area. Light candle near a mirror.
  - Place Garnet so candlelight reflects off it into the mirror.
  - Dab oil on wrists/neck: "I am radiant, I am desired. My aura gleams, my soul inspired."
  - Bathe, imagining all insecurities washing away.

### **Spell 29: Moonlit Pleasure Mirror**

**Purpose**: Deepen intimacy under lunar energy.

- 1. Materials:
  - Handheld mirror
  - White candle + red candle
  - Paper with both partners' names
  - Rose oil
- 2. Steps:
  - On a full moon night, place the mirror where moonlight can hit it.
  - Light the white candle on the left, red on the right, a few drops of rose oil around.
  - Put the name paper on the mirror, let moonlight reflect across it.
  - Say: "Under lunar glow, passion ascend. Unite our bodies as lovers, friends."
  - Burn 20–30 minutes, focusing on sensual unity.

### **Spell 30: Union of Embers**

**Purpose**: Intensify the erotic bond between consenting adults, merging physical and emotional closeness.

- 1. Materials:
  - 1 red candle, 1 pink candle
  - Paper with a heart drawn
  - Hair strands (one from each partner, optional)
  - Carnelian or Garnet

### 2. Steps:

- Place heart drawing in the center, candles on opposite sides.
- Lay hair across the heart, crystal on top.
- Light both candles: "Embers unite, hearts ignite. Our passions burn, day and night."
- Burn ~20 minutes, then snuff flames.

# **10. Category Seven: Obsession & Extreme Desire**

# (Spells 31–35)

A bold line is crossed here. These spells create powerful attachments, sometimes borderline manipulative. Proceed carefully.

**Professional Handling**: If you need guaranteed potency or worry about backlash, let me or a **coven** handle it. Email: **<u>xypherawitch@yahoo.com</u>**.

### Spell 31: Mind-Wrap Candle Convergence

**Purpose**: Fill the target's thoughts obsessively with your image.

#### 1. Materials:

- Red or black candle
- Photo of target (or name slip)
- Fire Opal or Red Garnet
- Black ribbon
- 2. Steps:
  - Slide photo under candle.
  - Wrap black ribbon around candle's middle.
  - Place Opal/Garnet 3 cm from wick.
  - Light candle, focusing on reflection hitting the photo.
  - Whisper: "Your mind is drawn, your thoughts on me. My essence lingers relentlessly."
  - Extinguish candle after 15 minutes, keep photo + ribbon safe.

### Spell 32: Late Night Possession Oil

**Purpose**: Infiltrate the target's subconscious, pushing them to dream or think about you at night.

- 1. Materials:
  - Small jar
  - Carrier oil (almond/olive)
  - Patchouli, rose, cinnamon oils
  - Slip of paper with target's name
  - Red Garnet or strong passion crystal
- 2. Steps:
  - Mix oils in jar, insert target's name slip.
  - Warm jar near candle flame briefly.

- Hover Garnet over jar: "When night falls, let my image be revealed. In dreams, let my presence be sealed."
- Dab oil on temples/wrists before bed. Continue up to 30 nights.

### **Spell 33: Burning Thoughts Binding**

Purpose: Tie the target's mental focus to you with smoldering intensity.

- 1. Materials:
  - Black candle
  - Paper (target's name in red ink)
  - Fireproof bowl
- 2. Steps:
  - Write name repeatedly in red ink.
  - Light black candle, hold the paper above the flame's heat.
  - Whisper: "By flame and mind, I bind your thought. With passion strong, you'll find me sought."
  - Finally, burn the paper in the bowl. Keep ashes for 30 days or bury them.

### Spell 34: Scarlet Ribbon Fixation

Purpose: Intensify sexual intrigue almost to obsession.

- 1. Materials:
  - Scarlet ribbon (~12 inches)
  - Target's photo
  - Optional drop of your blood (or saliva)
  - Fire Opal/Red Garnet
- 2. Steps:
  - Place target's photo on a flat surface.
  - If comfortable, add a tiny drop of your blood or saliva on it.
  - Wrap the photo with the scarlet ribbon, knot 3 times.
  - Position the crystal near a candlelight so it shines on the bundle.
  - Say: "Scarlet passions, in you I sow. My visage in your mind shall grow."
  - Store the bundle in a hidden box.

### Spell 35: Obsessive Heart Lockbox

**Purpose**: Lock the target's emotional essence so they can't escape thoughts of you.

### 1. Materials:

- Small lockbox + key
- Red candle
- Target's personal item (hair, nail clipping)
- Black pepper + cinnamon mix

### 2. Steps:

- Light the red candle.
- Place personal item in the box, sprinkle pepper + cinnamon.
- Close the box, turn key: "Your heart, your mind, revolve 'round me. Till I decide to set you free."
- Drip red wax on the lock. Keep the key safely hidden.

# 11. Category Eight: Darker Arts & Demonic Workings

# (Spells 36-40)

For advanced practitioners. Summoning or channeling darker entities requires strong protection and possibly rare crystals like Nuummite or Moldavite.

**Group Casting or High-Level Expertise**: Demonic forces can be dangerous. If uncertain, let me or a **coven** manage it. Email <u>xypherawitch@yahoo.com</u>.

### Spell 36: Shadow Influence Cloak

Purpose: Radiate an aura of intimidation or mystery, causing others to keep their distance.

#### 1. Materials:

- Black cloak or cloth
- Black candle
- Nuummite crystal
- Small mirror
- 2. Steps:
  - Wear the cloak, light the black candle.
  - Place Nuummite near flame, hold the mirror so candlelight reflects on the crystal.
  - Recite: "Cloaked in shadow, I remain unseen. Fear and awe flow in between."
  - Envision a dark aura enveloping you.

### Spell 37: Nightmare Impression Jar

**Purpose**: Induce unsettling or frightening dreams in a target.

- Small jar
- Black ribbon
- Vinegar
- Paper with target's name
- Onyx/Obsidian
- 2. Steps:
  - Write target's name on paper, place in jar.
  - Pour vinegar halfway.
  - Tie black ribbon around jar's mouth.
  - Drop Onyx in: "In your sleep, unsettled be. Nightmares come, courtesy of me."
  - Seal, store in dark place 30 days.

### Spell 38: Infernal Pact Candle

**Purpose**: Request a specific favor (wealth, power, revenge) from darker entities.

- 1. Materials:
  - Black or red pillar candle
  - Parchment + a statement of desire
  - Dragon's Blood incense (optional)
  - Moldavite (optional but strong, \$50–\$300+)
- 2. Steps:
  - Write your pact on the parchment.
  - Light candle, burn incense if available.
  - Place Moldavite so the flame filters onto the parchment.
  - Recite: "Shadows deep, powers old, hear my plea, let fate unfold."
  - Let candle burn until edges of parchment darken. Keep parchment sealed away.

### Spell 39: Abyssal Power Channel

**Purpose**: Draw raw energy from "lower" astral realms for personal empowerment.

### 1. Materials:

- Obsidian bowl
- Saltwater
- Black Tourmaline/Nuummite
- Black candle
- 2. Steps:
  - Fill the obsidian bowl with water, place stone inside.
  - Light the black candle behind the bowl, reflection shimmering on water.
  - Dip fingertips in water: "From depths unknown, surge through me. Abyssal power, set me free."
  - Imagine dark swirling force entering your body.

# Spell 40: Soul Link Binding

**Purpose**: Forge a near-unbreakable spiritual bond between you and another person or entity.

- 2 black candles
- Target's personal item

- A high-end crystal (Alexandrite, Paraíba Tourmaline)
- Silver or black chain
- 2. Steps:
  - Tie/wrap the personal item around chain's midpoint.
  - Place chain + crystal between two black candles.
  - Light candles, recite: "Two souls entwined in cosmic night, bound in spirit, locked in might."
  - Burn 30+ minutes, then extinguish. Wear or keep chain to maintain link.

# 12. Category Nine: Summoning Incubi/Succubi

# (Spells 41-45)

Invite potent sexual entities for intense experiences. **Beware**: They can be unpredictable. Use protective wards, advanced crystals (Tektite, Meteorite shards).

**Safety in Numbers:** A multi-witch circle can anchor the ritual for safety. Email me at **xypherawitch@yahoo.com** for safe demonic summoning.

### **Spell 41: Succubus Temptation Summon**

Purpose: Entice a female demon (Succubus) for sexual or creative energy.

- 1. Materials:
  - Black/dark purple candle
  - Succubus sigil (drawn or printed)
  - Tektite/Meteorite shard
  - Dragon's Blood/myrrh incense
- 2. Steps:
  - Place sigil on parchment. Light candle + incense.
  - Position Tektite so candlelight bounces onto the sigil.
  - Recite a Summoning incantation (adapt from demonology or create your own).
  - Sense a presence; maintain composure. End with a polite dismissal after contact.

### Spell 42: Incubus Night Embrace

Purpose: Call a male demon (Incubus) for nightly visits or dream encounters.

- 1. Materials:
  - Dark blue/black sheet or cloth
  - Black candle
  - Hematite
  - Personal item (ring, etc.)
- 2. Steps:
  - Lay cloth on bed/altar, place Hematite + personal item in center.
  - Light black candle, let glow cross the Hematite.
  - Recite: "Incubus of midnight's domain, enter my dreams, devour my pain."
  - Meditate 15 minutes. Observe dream changes.

## Spell 43: Twilight Dream Exchange

**Purpose**: Share vivid, possibly erotic dreams with an Incubus or Succubus, gleaning deeper knowledge.

### 1. Materials:

- Silver or black candle
- Mugwort/damiana (dream herbs)
- Labradorite or Selenite
- Sachet
- 2. Steps:
  - Fill sachet with dream herbs, place crystal on top.
  - Light candle, ensuring reflection hits the crystal.
  - Chant: "Betwixt mortal and demon, our dreams entwine. Secrets revealed through the veil of time."
  - Put sachet under pillow, watch for dream encounters.

# **Spell 44: Pact of Secret Desires**

**Purpose**: Forge a contract with a demonic lover for ongoing passion or guidance.

- 1. Materials:
  - Parchment + black ink
  - Needle/dagger for optional blood signature
  - Ring/pendant to act as a seal
- 2. Steps:
  - Write your desires and terms on parchment.
  - If comfortable, add a blood drop for signature.
  - Place ring/pendant on parchment, say: "I vow this vow, sealed in red. May our bond be honored, demon-led."
  - Keep parchment hidden. Wear or hold the item to maintain the pact.

# Spell 45: Demonic Consort Bond

**Purpose**: Form a lasting, intense relationship with an Incubus/Succubus.

- 1. Materials:
  - 2 black candles
  - Chalice of red wine/juice
  - Black Tourmaline or Onyx
  - Personal offering (hair, tears, etc.)

### 2. Steps:

- Light the black candles ~6 inches apart, chalice in center.
- Place your personal offering in or near the chalice.
- Recite: "Dark consort, I call to thee. Join your essence now with me. Passion, power—let it be."
- Sip from the chalice, feeling the spiritual bond form.

# 13. Category Ten: Advanced Mastery & Ultimate Fulfillment

# (Spells 46-50)

Multi-layered spells often needing **extremely rare crystals** (Paraíba Tourmaline, Alexandrite). Perfect for merging love, power, lust, and wealth. Typically require extended 30-day cycles or coven synergy.

**Coven-Level Casting**: For unstoppable results—like **Eternal Union** or an **Ultra-Demonic Sex Spell**—contact me at <u>xypherawitch@yahoo.com</u>. I can organize a group of witches to amplify your intent far beyond solo efforts.

### **Spell 46: Eternal Union Seal**

Purpose: Lifelong bonding of two consenting souls on emotional, mental, and spiritual levels.

- 1. Materials:
  - Matching rings/pendants
  - Paraíba Tourmaline or Alexandrite (pricey)
  - White + red candles
  - Optional drop of blood from each partner
- 2. Steps:
  - Place white candle (left), red candle (right), crystal in center.
  - Put rings around the crystal. If using blood, dab each ring gently.
  - Recite together: "Our hearts, our souls, forever entwined. Through love and will, our fates align."
  - Let candles burn ~30 minutes, then wear the rings.

### Spell 47: Ultra-Demonic Sex Spell

**Purpose**: Draw intense demonic force for overwhelming sexual power, for single use or repeated benefits.

- Black + red pillar candles
- Very rare crystal (Moldavite, Alexandrite)
- Dragon's Blood incense
- Mirror
- 2. Steps:
  - Darken the room, light incense.
  - Position candles left/right, crystal near a mirror so both flames reflect.
  - Chant: "Infernal flames, sexual might, fuse within me this ecstatic night."

• Meditate ~20–30 minutes on the swirling energy.

### Spell 48: Summon Succubus – Extracting the Raw Sexual Energy

**Purpose**: Specifically call a Succubus to harvest her sexual energy for personal transformation.

#### 1. Materials:

- Black + red candles
- Ultra-rare crystal (Paraíba Tourmaline, etc.)
- Dagger or athame
- Red fabric
- 2. Steps:
  - Place candles ~12 inches apart, crystal in center.
  - Light both simultaneously, recite a Summoning for the Succubus.
  - Pass the dagger tip over the crystal, letting candlelight reflect onto it.
  - Lay red fabric on top once you sense her presence, absorbing the sexual energy.
  - Thank and dismiss the entity, keep the charged fabric as a personal power item.

### **Spell 49: Extreme Obsession Circles**

**Purpose**: Layer multiple circles around a photo/item, creating a labyrinth of obsession for the target.

### 1. Materials:

- 3 candles (red, black, purple)
- Target's photo
- Chalk or salt for drawing circles
- Multiple crystals (Garnet, Obsidian, Alexandrite)
- 2. Steps:
  - Draw 3 concentric circles on a flat surface.
  - Place the photo in the center, crystals spaced in each circle.
  - Light candles at the outer ring, letting each flame reflect through each crystal onto the photo.
  - Chant: "Layer by layer, your thoughts ensnare. You find no peace, for I am there."
  - Keep it intact for ~30 days if possible.

### Spell 50: Ascendant Manifestation

**Purpose**: Merge love, power, lust, and prosperity into one unstoppable force.

- 4 candles: white (spirit), green (wealth), red (passion), black (power)
- High-level crystal (Alexandrite, Paraíba Tourmaline)
- Personal talisman or object
- 2. Steps:
  - Arrange candles in four directions (N=black, E=white, S=red, W=green).
  - Place crystal and talisman in the center.
  - Light each candle in sequence, calling its energy: "Spirit, wealth, passion, power."
  - Meditate 20 minutes as they converge in the crystal, then flow into the talisman.
  - Extinguish candles in reverse order, sealing energies in the talisman.

# 14. Maintaining Balance: When to Pause or Reverse a Spell

Not all spells yield desired effects, especially if they're manipulative or dark. **Reversal** steps might include:

- Cord-Cutting: Revisit banishing spells to sever unintended bonds.
- Salt & Vinegar Jars: Dissolve or neutralize targeted energy.
- Moon Phase: Preferably do reversals during a waning moon.

If reversing a powerful demonic or obsession spell feels too risky, contact me at **xypherawitch@yahoo.com** for a **professional undoing** that ensures safety.

# 15. Working with the 30-Day Lunar Cycle

Numerous spells mention waiting around 30 days. This period reflects the **moon's full orbit**, synced with many biological cycles, including the female menstrual cycle. New, waxing, full, and waning phases each lend unique energies, reinforcing or diminishing your intentions.

# 16. When to Seek Professional Help

- **Complex Rituals**: If a spell calls for rare crystals, multi-step demonology, or high risk, outsourcing to an experienced witch may save you from mistakes.
- **Material Sourcing**: Ultra-rare stones (Alexandrite, Paraíba Tourmaline) can be costly or faked. I can guarantee authentic materials.
- **Safety Concerns**: Darker arts or obsession spells have ethical and karmic repercussions. A professional ensures wards are in place.
- **Coven Casting**: If you desire an amplified effect (e.g., multiple witches focusing on your goal simultaneously), we can coordinate a **coven** ritual.

Email me at **<u>xypherawitch@yahoo.com</u>** to discuss options—from discrete single-witch spells to large-scale group efforts.

# **17. Conclusion: Your Ongoing Path**

Within these 50 spells lies the potential to transform your life—be it love, lust, wealth, or spiritual ascension. Yet remember:

- 1. Magic Reflects You: It amplifies your intention, but also your ethics and readiness.
- 2. Use Discernment: The line between beneficial creation and manipulative force is thin.
- 3. **Professional or Coven Support**: If you desire guaranteed strength or fear mishaps, I'm ready to assist at: **<u>xypherawitch@yahoo.com</u>**.

Magic is a dance between personal will and the cosmic energies that flow through all creation. By learning each step—candlelight, crystals, moon phases, synergy with others—you shape your own destiny.

**Blessed Be**, and may every spell open a path toward your greater self. Whenever you need extra power or guidance, know that my expertise and, if needed, a full coven stand ready to help you manifest your boldest desires. Contact me freely and let's create real magic together!